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SUMMARY MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Mr. Patrick J. Carroll               DATE:  August 30, 2016 

Principal 

Carroll Associates 

217 Commercial Street, Suite 200 

Portland, ME  04101 
 

RE:  Trip Generation and Accident Analyses for Proposed New Offices and Apartments on 

Ocean Avenue in Portland 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

         

 The purpose of this memorandum is to summarize trip generation analysis prepared 

for a proposed new building at the site of 23 Ocean Avenue in Portland, Maine. The site is 

currently occupied by 1,580 S.F. of office space. The proposed new building is expected to 

provide for a total of 2,389 S.F. of office space on the first floor and in the basement with 

four apartment units on the second floor. Additionally, in terms of safety, accident data was 

obtained and reviewed for the vicinity of the site.  

 
 

Existing Trip Generation 
 

 The number of trips generated by the existing offices was estimated using the most 

recent Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) “Trip Generation, 9th Edition,” published in 

2012. The trips were estimated using land use code (LUC) 710 – General Office Building on 

the basis of 1,580 S.F. The results are summarized below: 

 
                                  ITE Projected Trip Generation (one-way trip ends)                  

Time Period  Existing Offices 
 

Weekday   18 
 

AM Peak Hour – Adjacent Street  3 

   Entering  3 

   Exiting  0 
 

PM Peak Hour – Adjacent Street  2 

   Entering  0 

   Exiting  2 

 
As demonstrated above, the existing offices are currently generating 3 trips during the 

AM peak hour of the adjacent street and 2 trips during the PM peak hour of the adjacent 

street. 
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Proposed Trip Generation 
 

The number of trips to be generated by the proposed offices and apartments was 

estimated using LUCs 710 – General Office Building on the basis of 2,389 S.F. and 220 – 

Apartment on the basis of four (4) dwelling units. The results are summarized in the table 

below: 
 

                                  ITE Projected Trip Generation (one-way trip ends)                  

Time Period Offices Apartments Total 
 

Weekday  26 28 54 
 

AM Peak Hour – Adjacent Street 4 2  6 

   Entering 4 0  4 

   Exiting 0 2  2 
 

PM Peak Hour – Adjacent Street 4 3  7 

   Entering 1 2  3 

   Exiting 3 1  4 

 
As shown above, the proposed offices and apartment units are expected to generate a 

total of 6 new one-way trips during the AM peak of the adjacent street and 7 new trips during 

the PM peak of the adjacent street. This results in the entire site generating 9 one-way trips 

during the AM peak hour period and 9 one-way trips during the PM peak hour period.    This 

minimal level of new traffic would not be expected to have any significant impact off-site on 

traffic operations. Typically, a project will not have any measurable impact unless it 

generates in excess of 25 to 35 new lane hour trips. The proposed residential and office 

development will generate a maximum of four (4) new lane hour trips based upon the ITE 

analysis, which will have no impact off-site on traffic operations.  

 

 

Safety Analysis 
 

Accident Review 
 

 The Maine Department of Transportation uses two criteria to determine high crash 

locations (HCLs). The first is the critical rate factor (CRF), which is a measure of the 

accident rate. A CRF greater than one indicates a location which has a higher than expected 

accident rate.  The expected rate is calculated as a statewide average of similar facilities. 

 

The second criterion, which must also be met, is based upon the number of accidents 

that occur at a particular location. Eight or more accidents must also occur over the three-year 

study period for the location to be considered a high crash location. Accident data was 

obtained from MaineDOT for both Ocean Avenue and Hersey Street within the vicinity of the 

proposed site for the most recent three-year period, 2013 - 2015.  This data is summarized by 

location in the following table: 












